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RFP No. 901420, Questions & Answers 

COUNTY OF ALAMEDA

QUESTION & ANSWERS
to

RFP No. 901623
for

2009 Real Estate Master Plan Ten Year Update
Summary of Questions & Answers Submitted

 of the Networking/Bidders Conferences held on December 18, 2017 and December 19, 2017
	This County of Alameda, General Services Agency (GSA), Questions & Answers (Q&A) document has been electronically issued to potential bidders via e-mail.  E-mail addresses used are those in the County’s Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Vendor Database or from other sources.  If you have registered or are certified as a SLEB, please ensure that the complete and accurate e-mail address is noted and kept updated in the SLEB Vendor Database.  This Q&A document will also be posted on the GSA Contracting Opportunities website located at http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/bid_content/ContractOpportunities.jsp.


Alameda County is committed to reducing environmental impacts across our entire supply chain. 

If printing this document, please print only what you need, print double-sided, and use recycled-content paper.

Responses to Verbal and Written Questions.
Q1)     When will the question and answer document be released?
1A) The Q&A will be released on January 3, 2018.
Q2) Regarding the 2009 RFP, what is the reason for the new RFP?  Was the previous master plan inadequate?

2A) This is a ten year update, and is generally prudent given that much may have changed in ten years.  An example is the advances in technology in a decade.  Another is changes in population demographics.  These are only examples as an update may identify other changes. Please read the Intent and Background sections for additional context. 
Q3) When will the bidders list be released to vendors?

3A) The list of bidders will be released on December 21, 2017.

Q4) Will the same information be provided at tomorrow’s bid conference at San Lorenzo Library?
4A) Yes, the agenda is the same for both bid conferences. The only difference is in the 2nd bidder’s conference, vendors don’t have the option to call in via phone.

Q5) Vendor’s firm has an office in Oakland, not a SLEB, and another office outside of Oakland, can vendor claim local preference?
5A) Yes, if the bidder has an office in Alameda County within 6 months of the bid due date, bidder can claim local but not SLEB preference. Page 3, item 10 of Exhibit A states:
Bid Response Packet if “Bidder is LOCAL to Alameda County and is requesting 5% bid preference, and should attached the following documentation to this Exhibit
· Copy of a verifiable business license, issued by the County of Alameda or a City within the County; and
· Proof of six months business residency, identifying the name of the vendor and the local address.  Utility bills, deed of trusts or lease agreements, etc., are acceptable verification documents to prove residency. 

Kindly note that the prime bidder that is only local to Alameda County, is still required to subcontract with a certified SLEB in addition to attaching documentation that the bidder is LOCAL to Alameda County.
Q6) It was referenced in the RFP that the contract will be negotiated to the winning firm, does that include terms and conditions?
6A) Yes, Page 22 of the RFP, Section O, item 10 states:

Final Standard Agreement terms and conditions will be negotiated with the selected bidder.  Bidder may access a copy of the Standard Services Agreement template that can be found online at: 

http://www.acgov.org/gsa/purchasing/standardServicesAgreement.pdf. The template contains minimal Agreement boilerplate language only.    
Q7) The Term of the contract is 3-years, with a start date in April 2018. In proposing a Project Schedule should bidders presume key milestone for the final Master Plan update deliverable is April 2021? If not, when is the final deliverable expected?
7A) The Contractor is expected to submit a fixed price on Real Estate Master Plan Ten Year Update that will be delivered within a year or less, and is expected to propose a schedule with key milestones in their bid documents to meet this deliverable.  “As needed services” may be contracted for plan execution: 

Page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT) states:

The contract award will be a fixed price contract covering the development of an update to the 2009 Real Estate Master Plan for the downtown Oakland and Hayward area.  GSA may also award a second “open’ contract specifically for professional consulting services, on an “as-needed’ basis, as we move the plan from development through execution.  
Q8) Is the projected time span for this update of the [20-yr.] 2009 Master Plan to guide the County’s real estate activities and facilities development, before another update might be called for? (e.g. 2021 through 2030? Or longer?)
8A) Please refer to page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT) states:

A twenty year Real Estate Master Plan (REMP) was prepared for Alameda County in 2009, and an update is necessary to inform the final ten years of portfolio planning.
Q9) Will the County select from the Prime respondents, and/or any of their subconsultants, to RFP No. 901623, to negotiate any second “open” contract (if awarded) for professional consulting services on an “as-needed” basis?  OR will this second contract, IF awarded, automatically only be offered to the successful Master Plan update team?
9A) The second contract will be awarded to the successful contractor. 
Q10) Does the County require ten (5 current and 5 former) references for EACH subconsultant team member as well, or only for the Primes? Please clarify what subconsultant references are needed, if any—ten seems excessive, especially for SLEBs?
10A) Only the prime bidder is required to submit the required references.
Q11) Do vendors need to include exceptions in bid submittal?
11A) Yes, if the bidder would like to take exceptions and/or clarification to the RFP, they may use the Exceptions, Clarification, and Amendment page on page 12–Exhibit A. Please note that the County is under no obligation to accept any exceptions and such exceptions may be a basis for bid disqualification. 
Q12) As a part of deliverables, for the RFP, do bidders need to separate plans for Oakland and Hayward for submission?
12A) No.  The plan should cover both the Oakland and Hayward area.  Please see revised bid form in Addendum #1. 
Q13) Does the County have a budget in-hand for any specific development implementation? If so, can vendors be notified of amount? If not, what are the County’s plans for funding any implementation of the Master Plan?
The County’s current 5 Year Capital Plan can be found on the County’s website: www.acgov.org/cao/financial.htm 
Page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT), states:

A twenty year Real Estate Master Plan (REMP) was prepared for Alameda County in 2009, and an update is necessary to inform the final ten years of portfolio planning. 

Q14) Please clarify if and when the Real Estate Master Plan team would be given shared access to be able to review any Facilities Conditions Assessment(s) that might be ongoing in parallel to this process in order to coordinate into criteria to be considered in the Master Plan analysis? For example—would we be able to work with GSA Project Managers, to receive field information or draft facilities conditions assessment updates, to coordinate with, or help identify physical conditions to be included in the Assessment what would help inform Real Estate Master planning?

14A) General Services Agency (GSA) will make current information available regarding current known facility conditions, and will schedule field meetings with facility and/or project managers as appropriate.  A GSA Contract Project Manager will be assigned to the Contractor to facilitate the process. The County has a Facilities Conditions Assessment RFP on the website that is running one week behind this RFP; however, this will be a phased County-wide approach for County owned facilities, and information may not be readily or immediately available for the 2009 REMP Update. 
Q15) Is the County looking to coordinate this Master Plan with the facilities conditions assessment RFP? What relationship do the two studies have? What’s the timing of the two?
15A) The County may review information in both plans when setting portfolio priorities.  The two RFPs were posted approximately one week apart, but the deliverables may not be parallel.  The Contractor for this RFP will be proposing a deliverable schedule; while the County will propose a phased schedule for the Facilities Conditions Assessment.  Also, the Facilities Conditions Assessment includes facilities outside of Oakland and Hayward. 
Q16) Does the County have - (a.) current inventory with existing facilities assessments, if so – what is the date of the last facilities assessment or any updates?  (b.) a current Deferred Maintenance Plan?  (c.) other physical assessments such as hazmat, soils reports or seismic analysis of any assets that should be reviewed and considered?
16A) Please see the response to Q15. The winning contractor will be provided with current known facility information while preparing the plan.   The Bidders conference is for the 2009 Real Estate Master Plan Ten Year Update and is not for The Facilities Conditions Assessment RFP.  Any questions regarding Facilities Conditions Assessment should be addressed to: Ann Marie Romero, Annmarie.romero@acogv.org.
Q17) Is the County interested in looking at sustainability aspects as a part of the analysis on the Real Estate portfolio? Please clarify the details of scope analysis on sustainability. 
17A) Yes.  The County is interested in how portfolio planning addresses alternative models for service delivery and space needs, alternative work, and alternative modes of transportation as we work toward meeting our Climate Action Plan objectives. 
Page 5 of the RFP, Section B (BACKGROUND) states:

GSA is seeking updated metrics and targets as it relates to future space environments and future employee modes of transportation. The 2009 REMP Update will consider the County’s Climate Action Plan as part of the recommendations proposed. This plan can be found on the County’s website http://www.acgov.org/sustain/next/plan.htm 
Q18) Any other condition assessments past or present, or existing Master plans that can be posted online in addition to the Social Services plan? 
18A) The current Social Services plan and the 2009 Master Plan are the only two Master space plans. The 2009 Real Estate Master Plan is posted within the RFP. (Please see link below and also mentioned on page 5 – Section B – Background)
http://www.acgov.org/government/documents/acremp.pdf
Other Master Plans that may inform the Real Estate Master Plan include but aren’t limited to: 

The Alameda County 5 Year Capital Plan:  www.acgov.org/cao/financial.htm
The Alameda County Transportation Commission Master Plan: 

https://www.alamedactc.org/CountywideTransportationPlan
The Alameda Community Development General Plan

https://www.acgov.org/cda/planning/generalplans/index.htm
The Alameda County Climate Action Plan

http://www.acgov.org/sustain/next/plan.htm
Q19) Page 4 of the RFP, Section A (INTENT) states:

“GSA may also award a second “open’ contract specifically for professional consulting services, on an “as-needed’ basis, as we move the plan from development through execution.”
Will this second contract, IF awarded in the Future, intended to be negotiated with the selected Master Plan update team?

19A) Yes, the second contract will be negotiated with the winning contractor.
Q20) Page 6 of RFP, Section C  (SCOPE), Item 3 states:
 “Analysis of planned development projects in the target areas.” 

Would this specific scope be covered by the “second, ‘open’ as-needed contract? (IF not, over 3 years, if unlimited, this could potentially be analysis and master planning of many projects. Can the County identify these projects and target areas, if known at this time, or at least quantify them for purposes of inclusion in bid proposals?)
20A) It is expected that publically known planned development projects in the cities of Oakland and Hayward would be identified for impacts to the County’s portfolio plans. 
Q21) Page 6 of RFP, Section C (SCOPE), Item 6 states: 
"Transportation analysis coordinated with the County’s transportation plan”
Is this transportation analysis specific to the entire County and all its residents or is it specific to just County employees?
21A) The analysis is for the transportation to County facilities by the community served and the employees and any relation or impacts to the Countywide Transportation Plan.  The Alameda County Transportation Commission Master Plan: https://www.alamedactc.org/CountywideTransportationPlan
Q22) Page 6 of RFP, Section C (SCOPE), Item 9 states: 
 “Community planning and consensus building”
Please clarify what is intended. Does the County wish vendors to hold community workshops for this Real Estate Master Plan in order to engage the community for meaningful input? Or somehow build community consensus for the final Master Plan after the fact with no community engagement?

22A) It is expected that the Contractor will engage the community for input especially for planning purposes related to sites that have community access and service requirements. 
Q23) Page 6 of RFP, Section C (SCOPE), Item 10 states:

“Risk management plans”
 Does risk management concern risks to implementing the plan?  Does it concern Information Technology risk management?  Can the county provide a complete description of what is involved in the risk management plans? 
23A) Risk management is the risk associated with implementation or non-implementation of proposed plans. 
Q24) Page 6 of RFP, Section C (SCOPE), Item 11 states:
“Capital formation planning” 
Please clarify what is intended. It is unclear if it’s the financial sense of the word “capital,” or the physical building asset. For example, does the County mean “Identify sources of revenue or financing mechanism options for implementation” or something else?
24A) The intent is to include the Capital formation necessary to implement the plan over time that include changes to financial and facility assets and liabilities. 
Q25) Page 7 of RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Items (a-f) states:
a. Conduct detailed financial, economic and market research and feasibility analyses for complex governmental development projects;

b. Assist the GSA staff with site and master planning for potential development sites;

c. Advise and make recommendations to GSA staff on various aspects of developer solicitations;

d. Advise and assist the GSA staff during complex negotiations with developers on lease and development agreements;

e. Collaborate with GSA staff in managing the project from inception through the entitlement process, close of escrow, and project completion; and

f. Assess the carbon sustainability impacts of the facilities and their locations.
Please clarify. By nature of the work, is intended to be covered by any optional “second ‘open’ as-needed contract, and therefor may be excluded from any lump sum proposed in the Bid Form for this Primary contract? 
25A) The contractor must have the expertise and resources for the lump sum contract for items a, b, and f.  The other expertise and resources are required for the ongoing contract services for items c, d, and e.
Q26) Page 7 of RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4(b) states:
 “Assist the GSA staff with site and master planning for potential development sites.” 

At this time, it is difficult to put a fixed budget on this item without understanding more of the number of sites, extent, nature, and complexities of any one project site, etc. May bidders be flexible in proposing a budget for how to serve the County’s needs for this Item until more specifics are known? OR is this task item intended to be part of the future scope of work of any second “open, as-needed” contract?
26A) It is expected that the number of new sites proposed and the real estate market’s impact on proposals regarding new sites be included in the lump sum contact.  Site development plans for individual projects may be part of a potential as-needed contract scope. 
Q27) Page 7 of RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS), Item 4(f) states: 
“Assess the carbon and sustainability impacts of the facilities and their locations.” 
May bidders assume the County would like the final deliverable to Item 1 to reflect carbon reductions and sustainability as an important criteria of the portfolio analysis and recommendations for property dispositions to be considered with all the C. SCOPE, page 6 of the RFP, items 1-12?  In overall strategic master planning?
27A) Yes on both questions.
Q28) Pages 7 of the RFP, Section E (SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS) refer to “advisement“ or other on call/ongoing services with  implied  intermediate or additional deliverable other than the “Real Estate Master Plan  Update.” Would the County be interested in any evaluation for Zero Energy Building (ZNE) or building decarbonization potential and any estimates for associated life cycle costs/savings and or GHG or operational energy savings as part of the criteria for Real Estate Master Planning analysis and implementation recommendations?
28A) No.  This is not being considered at this time.
Q29) Page 15 of RFP , Section H (EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE), Item F(1) states:
“An evaluation will be made of the likelihood that Bidder’s implementation plan and schedule will meet the County’s schedule.”

Is the County’s schedule for this project available for bidders to review?

29A) The County expects that the lump sum contract deliverables can be performed within a year or less. The Contractor is expected to include a proposed schedule with key milestones in the proposal to meet this deliverables. 
Q30) Page 15 of RFP, Section H (EVALUATION CRITERIA/SELECTION COMMITTEE), Item F(1) states:

“Additional credit will be given for the identification and planning for mitigation of schedule risks which Bidder believes may adversely affect any portion of the County’s schedule” 

Please clarify that the County’s schedule is needed in order for bidders to receive the additional credit.

30A) The requirement has been deleted.  Please see Addendum #1.
Q31) Regarding the Bid form, what is the county asking for under the first part for Oakland and Hayward Plans "Lump Sum Pricing Table"- "UNIT cost" is in yellow highlighted areas.  Are bidders to average the hourly rates of everyone on the team somehow and provide one hourly $xxx/hr. rate? OR provide a lump sum Total cost fixed contract number, (i.e. $xxx,xxx.00) which would go in the NON-highlighted column?  Please clarify, thanks.
31A) Please see REVISED Bid Form on Addendum #1.  The 1st tab is for the cost to prepare the Hayward and Oakland Real Estate Master Plan – Ten Year Update.  The second tab is for hourly rate for “As Needed” Consulting Services. The highlighted area is the area in which the bidder will enter their pricing.  The proposal will include an explanation of how the lump sum relates to the proposed resources assigned and deliverable timelines.  
Q32) On table 2 of the Bid Form, "Hourly rates As-needed services", can bidders add other special Descriptions of Services, with hourly rates, that our team offers?
32A) Yes.  Please see REVISED Bid Form on Addendum #1.
Q33) On table 2 of the Bid Form, “Hourly Rates for As-Needed Consulting Services”, since more than one individual team member might be working together on any one "Service", may bidders add lines under the Description of Services to list different team members' hourly rates that may be working on that same Service item?  
33A) Yes, bidders may add lines for additional description of services and hourly rates.

The following participants attended the Bidders Conferences:

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	1. 
	Keyser Marston 

160 Pacific Avenue

San Francisco, CA  94111

	Kimberly Heaton
	Phone: (415) 398-3050

	
	
	
	E-Mail: kheaton@keysermarston.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: no

	2. 
	CaliChi Civil Engineers

3240 Peralta Street, #3

Oakland, CA  94608
	Louise McGinnis Barber 

	Phone: (916) 390-5032

	
	
	
	E-Mail: louise@calichi.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	3. 
	Jones Lang LaSalle

601 Union Street, Suite 280

Seattle, WA  98101
	Stephanie Hardin
	Phone: (253) 951-8932

	
	
	
	E-Mail:  Steph.Hardin@am.jll.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: n/a

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: no

	4. 
	Meyers Engineers

98 Battery Street

San Francisco, CA  94105
	Diane Fischer
	Phone: (415) 710-4297

	
	
	
	E-Mail: diane@meyersplus.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: no

	5. 
	Overland Pacific Cutler, Inc.

7901 Oakport Street, Suite 4800

Oakland, CA  94621
	Chad Wakefield
	Phone: (510) 638-3081

	
	
	
	E-Mail: cWakefield@OPCservices.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: n/a

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	6. 
	Gensler

500 South Figueroa Street

Los Angeles, CA  90071
	Paul Natzke
	Phone: (213) 327-3815

	
	
	
	E-Mail: paul_natzke@gensler.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: n/a

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	7. 
	Turner & Townsend Trestle

201 Clay Street, Suite 2240

San Francisco, CA  94111
	Eric Ottinger
	Phone: (415) 489-1600

	
	
	
	E-Mail: eric.ottinger@tt-trestle.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: n/a

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	8. 
	Laura Blake Architect

1699 Vallejo Street, #1

San Francisco, CA  94123
	Laura Blake
	Phone: (415) 297-5340

	
	
	
	E-Mail: Laura@LauraBlakeArchitect.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: No

	
	
	
	

	
	Company Name / Address
	Representative
	Contact Information

	9. 
	blink!Lab Architecture

4228 Martin Luther King Jr. Way

Oakland, CA  94609
	June Grant
	Phone: (510) 326-2176

	
	
	
	E-Mail: jgrant@blink-lab.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	10. 
	Greenbank Associates

117 Greenbank Avenue

Piedmont, CA  94611
	Alice Sung

	Phone: (510) 658-8060

	
	
	
	Email: asung1@gmail.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes

	11. 
	Economic & Planning Systems

One Kaiser Plaza, Suite 1410

Oakland, CA  94612-3604
	Jason Moody
	Phone: (510) 841-9190

	
	
	
	Email: jmoody@epsys.com

	
	
	
	Prime Contractor: No

	
	
	
	Subcontractor: Yes

	
	
	
	Certified SLEB: Yes



EXHIBIT C

VENDOR LIST

In addition to the list of Bidders Conferences Attendees above, the following table of vendors is being provided for informational purposes to assist bidders in making contact with other businesses as needed to develop local small and emerging business subcontracting relationships to meet the requirements of the Small Local Emerging Business (SLEB) Program:

http://www.acgov.org/gsa/departments/purchasing/policy/slebpref.htm.

This RFP Q&A is being issued to all vendors on the Vendor Bid List; the following revised vendor list includes contact information for each vendor attendee at the Networking/Bidders Conferences.
	RFP No. 901623 - 2009 Real Estate Master Plan Ten Year Update

	AC Development Partners
	 
	(510) 632-1131 
	7200 Bancroft Ave
	Oakland
	CA
	rsbridwell@eastmont.com

	Alisto Engineering Group
	Al Sevilla
	(925) 279-5000
	2737 North Main St., Suite 200
	Walnut Creek
	CA
	asevilla@alisto.com

	Bay Area Economics
	Sherry Okun-Rudnak
	(510) 547-9380
	2600 10th Street , Suite 300
	Berkeley
	CA
	sherryokunrudnak@bae1.com

	blink!Lab Architecture
	June Grant
	(510) 326-2176
	4228 Martin Luther King Jr. Way
	Oakland
	CA
	jgrant@blink-lab.com

	Business Place Strategies, Inc.
	Clark Sept
	(510) 530-3789
	318 N. Carson St., Ste 200
	Carson City
	NV
	clark@businessplacestrategies.com

	CaliChi Civil Engineers
	Louse McGinnis Barber
	(916) 390-5032
	3240 Peralta Street, #3
	Oakland
	CA
	louise@calichi.com

	CBRE Consulting, Inc.
	Terry Margerum
	 
	505 Montgomery Street, Suite 600
	San Francisco
	CA
	Terry.margerum@cbre.com

	Collier International
	Ken Meyersieck
	 
	 
	 
	 
	ken.meyersieck@colliers.com

	Collins Management
	 
	(510) 262-1795
	500 alfred Nobel Drive, Ste 250
	Hercules
	CA
	paul@collins-mgmt.com

	Contract Office Group
	Dennis Jackson
	(408) 213-5014
	1731 Technology Drive
	San Jose
	CA
	dennisj@cog.com

	Cresa Partners Bay Area, Inc.
	Jeff Gagnon
	(415) 394-1027
	260 California Street, 9th floor
	San Francisco
	CA
	jgagnon@cresa.com

	Cushman & Wakefield
	Anthony Shell
	 
	 
	 
	 
	anthony.shell@cushwake.com

	Economic & Planning Systems
	Jason Moody
	(510) 841-9190
	One Kaiser Plaza, Suite 1410
	Oakland
	CA
	jmoody@epsys.com

	Equis Corporation
	Dede Satten
	 
	201 Spear Street, Suite 1350
	San Francisco
	CA
	 

	Emergent Solutions, Inc.
	Reza Ahmadi
	(415) 699-7250
	201 Spear Sreet, Suite 1100 #3187
	San Francisco
	CA
	rahmadi@esodl.com

	Gensler
	Katie Boothroyd
	(415) 836-4509
	2 Harrison, Ste. 400
	San Francisco
	CA
	katie_boothroyd@gensler.com

	
	
	(607) 761-9169
	
	
	
	

	Gensler
	Paul Natzke
	(213) 327-3815
	500 South Figueroa Street
	Los Angeles
	CA
	paul_natzke@gensler.com

	Greenbank Associates
	Alice Sung
	(510) 658-8060
	117 Greenbank Avenue
	Piedmont
	CA
	asung1@gmail.com

	Group 4 Architecture, Research + Planning, Inc.
	David Schnee
	(650) 871-0709
	211 Linden Avenue
	So. San Francisco
	CA
	dschnee@g4arch.com

	Grubb & Ellis
	Timothy Rivers
	 
	 
	 
	 
	trivers@ngkf.com

	IPA Planning Solutions, Inc.
	 
	(510) 839-4550
	1425 Clay St., Ste. 100
	Oakland
	CA
	ipa@facmania.com

	Jones Lang LaSalle
	Stephanie Hardin
	(253) 951-8932
	601 Union Street, Suite 280
	Seattle
	WA
	Steph.Hardin@am.jll.com

	Jones Lang LaSalle
	Bob Hunt
	(206) 354-1397
	1 Front St., Ste. 1200
	San Francisco
	CA
	bob.hunt@am.jll.com

	Keyser Marston
	Kimberly Heaton
	(415) 398-3050
	160 Pacific Avenue
	San Francisco
	CA
	kheaton@keysermarston.com

	Komorous-Towey Architects
	Thomas Towey
	(510) 446-2244
	410 12th St., Ste. 300
	Oakland
	CA
	tj@ktarch.com

	Laura Blake Architect
	Laura Blake
	(415) 297-5340
	1699 Vallejo Street, #1
	San Francisco
	CA
	Laura@LauraBlakeArchitect.com

	Meyers Engineers
	Diane Fischer
	(415) 710-4927
	98 Battery Street
	San Francisco
	CA
	diane@meyersplus.com

	M Moser Associates LLC
	John Koga
	(949) 398-7640
	16 Technology Drive, Suite 116
	Irvine
	CA
	johnkoga@mmoser.com

	Muller & Caulfield Architects
	Rosemary Muller
	(510) 832-8560
	339 15th St. Ste. 300
	Oakland
	CA
	rmuller@mullercaulfield.com

	Newmark Knight Frank
	Randy Buddemeyer
	(813) 830-7961
	4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd., Suite 440
	Tampa
	FL
	rbuddemeyer@ngkf.com

	Newmark Knight Frank
	Kim Hood
	 
	4221 W. Boy Scout Blvd., Suite 440
	Tampa
	FL
	khood@ngkf.com

	Overland Pacific Cutler, Inc.
	Chad Wakefield
	(510) 638-3031
	7901 Oakport Street, Suite 4800
	Oakland
	CA
	cWakefield@OPCservices.com

	RMW Architecture & Interiors
	Stephanie Sims
	(415) 490-1684
	160 Pine St., 4th Floor
	San Francisco
	CA
	ssims@rmw.com

	SMC Consulting
	Sam McWilliams
	(724) 728-8625
	379 Insurance St.
	Beaver
	PA
	sam@smcconsulting.net

	Staubah company
	Tom Maloney
	 
	1300 Clay Street, Suite 600
	Oakland
	CA
	 

	The Telecommuting Advantage Group
	Rick Albiero
	(415) 609-9857
	47 Santa Rosa Avenue #2
	Pacifica
	CA
	rick@telecommutingadvantage.com

	Transitions
	Tammy Metzler
	(510) 889-8415
	1295 Cotter Way
	Hayward
	CA
	tmetzler@transitionsmcw.com

	Turner & Townsend Trestle
	Eric Ottinger
	(415) 489-1600
	Two Embarcadero Center, 201 Clay Street Suite 2240
	San Francisco
	CA
	eric.ottinger@tt-trestle.com

	Ware Malcomb
	Gary Drew
	(925) 244-9620
	2400 Camino Ramon, Ste. 390
	San Ramon
	CA
	gdrew@waremalcomb.com

	Corporate Int. Solutions
	Jesus Silva
	510-773-9309
	25546 Seaboard Ln.
	Hayward
	CA
	jesus@corporateintsolutions.com


1401 Lakeside Drive, Suite 907 ( Oakland, CA 94612
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